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Preparer's Eligibility Recommendation: Eligibility recommended X Eligibility not recommended

Criteria: A B C D Considerations: A B C D E F G

Complete if the property is a contributing or non-contributing resource to a NR district/property:

Name of the District/Property:

. Inventory Number: Eligible: yes Listed: yes

Site visit by MHT Staff yes X no Name: Date:

Description of Property and Justification:  (Please attach map and photo)

Ware Neck Farm is a 52-acre agricultural parcel located in Dorchester County, east of Cambridge. The property, first surveyed by
Michael Bourne in 1975, is located at the north end of Handley Road and extends northward to the Choptank River and eastward to
Hurst Creek. The primary building on the property is an early-nineteenth-century, brick dwelling that exhibits a number of
twentieth-century additions. Several agricultural buildings, including a pump house, smokehouse, corncrib, a grainery, are arranged
in a line extending eastward from the rear of the main dwelling. The property is reflective of the nineteenth-century agricultural
history of Dorchester County, however, extensive alterations made to the primary dwelling and other changes made to the property
have compromised its physical integrity. Based upon the evaluation detailed below, the property is recommended not eligible for
listing in the National Register of Historic Places under Criteria A, B, C, or D.

An on-site interview with the current property owner, Mr. James Handley, and his daughter, Ms. Shirley Denton, was conducted by
Anne E. Bruder, Architectural Historian with SHA, and Carrie Albee, Architectural Historian with EHT Traceries, Inc., on
Thursday, May 25, 2006. In this interview, Mr. Handley outlined what he knew of the history of the property, beginning with
Margaret Spriggs, who was said to have owned the property in the eighteenth century. Mr. Handley indicated that his family
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‘cquired the property in the late nineteenth century. He stated that the property was given to his grandparents, James P. Handley

and Sarah C. Handley, by Sarah C. Handley's parents as a wedding gift. Genealogical research confirmed that James P. Handley
and Sarah Cornelia Seward were married on January 18, 1882 (FamilySearch.org). The property has remained in the family since
that time. His father, Raymond, was born on the property around 1892. At her death, Sarah C. Handley divided the property, then
approximately 360 acres, roughly evenly between six children, with each child inheriting approximately 60 acres. The current 52
acres is the remaining portion of the 60 acres that Mr, James Handley's father received of the original 360 acres.

Subdivision of the Ware Neck Farm in the twentieth century resulted in the greatest period of growth of a small residential enclave
known as Jacktown, located to the south along Old Route 50, The unplanned development of Jacktown includes a number of
dwellings that are similar in form and/or detailing, suggesting the influences of several speculative developers or builders. Between
1920 and 1945, approximately twenty-five (25) single-family dwellings had been constructed in Jacktown, primarily along Moose
Lodge Road and Old Route 50. Infill development took place in the middle part of the twentieth century. This was sparked by the
establishment of better roads that brought tourists to the region and allowed residents to transverse the county, thus providing an
opportunity for better jobs. Additionally, the subdivision and ultimate sale of acres historically associated with the farm resulted in
the construction of additional single-family houses to the south of the main Federal-era house. The vast majority of the
construction between 1945 and 1975 occurred in the 1950s, when Ware Neck Farm was subdivided. Moreover, the subdivision
resulted in the construction of four residential buildings constructed along Sand Road to the immediate northwest of Ware Neck
Farm. The dwellings, dating from circa 1930 to 1979, were constructed by members of the Handley family. The family continues
to own the property, leasing two of the four parcels.

The property was evaluated for eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places under Criterion A as an agricultural property
reflective of the significant agricultural history and character of Dorchester County. The 52-acre parcel remains largely employed
in agricultural production, currently soybeans and sunflowers. Several historic agricultural outbuildings remain intact on the
property, arranged in a line extending east from the original dwelling. Among these are a pump house, a smokehouse, a cornerib,
and a grainery. However, these outbuildings are no longer central to the operation of the farm. Further, several non-historic
outbuildings are also present, including a large implement or tractor shed. Although the remaining 52 acres still retains its open,
agricultural character and direct physical relationship with the Choptank River and Hurst Creek, the physical integrity of the
property has been substantially diminished by the mid- and late-twentieth-century residential development of Jacktown and the
buildings on Sand Road. Several non-historic dwellings are located immediately to the west and east of the property, and directly
south of the farm are light-industrial operations. The later construction and non-sympathetic uses have compromised the integrity
of location, setting, design, and feeling of the agricultural property. Thus, Ware Neck Farm is not eligible for the National Register
of Historic Places under Criterion A.

The property was evaluated for eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places under Criterion B for its association with the
Handley family. The current owner indicated that the property had come into the Handley family at the marriage of James P.
Handley to Sarah Cornelia Seward, which took place in 1882, and has remained in the family since that time. The Handley family
has been in Dorchester County since at least the first federal census in 1790. However, no historical significance is known to be
attributed to the Handley family. The current property owner also indicated that the original owner of the property was Margaret
Spriggs. Spriggs was not identified through basic research into census and genealogical sources, and she has no known historical
significance. Therefore, Ware Neck Farm is disqualified for listing in the National Register of Historic Places under Criterion B.

The property was evaluated for eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places under Criterion C as an early-nineteenth-
century dwelling. Although the main block of the early-nineteenth-century structure is intact and visually distinguishable, the
dwelling as currently configured has been extensively altered on both the exterior and the interior. A two-story brick addition was
constructed onto the west elevation of the original main block of the building in the early twentieth century. Further substantial
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id- and late-twentieth-century wood-frame additions are present on the north and east elevations of the masonry structure. An
early-twentieth-century photograph of the dwelling, in the possession of the current owner, shows the building as it looked prior to
these additions. A one-story wood-frame kitchen wing on the east elevation is shown in the photograph, but this wing was removed
in the construction of the existing two-story east addition. The late-nineteenth-century one-story porch depicted in the photograph
has also been removed and replaced with a late-twentieth-century portico. The extensive alterations to the primary dwelling have
resulted in a loss of integrity of design, materials, workmanship, and feeling sufficient for listing in the National Register of Historic
Places under Criterion C.

The property was not evaluated for eligibility for the National Register of Historic Places under Criterion D for its information

potential. Based upon the research undertaken and the on-site, above-ground investigation, the property is not known to have any
significance under Criterion D.
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MARYLAND INVENTORY OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES
ADDENDUM
MIHP Number: D-110

Property Name: Ware Neck Farm
Property Address: 5465 Handley Road, Cambridge, MD 21613

Surveyor: Anne E. Bruder, SHA
Carrie Albee, EHT Traceries, Inc.
Survey Date: May 25, 2006

This addendum provides an additional physical description of the primary dwelling and
associated secondary structures on the site, as well as history of the property derived from
an interview with the current property owner, Mr. James F. Handley, and his daughter,
Shirley Denton.

Section 7: Description

The 52-acre parcel is located at the north end of Handley Road, and extends north to the
Choptank River and east to Hurst Creek. The property is currently planted with soybeans
and sunflowers. A fenced paddock for horses is also present, located to the east of the
dwelling.

The primary dwelling on the site appears to date to the late eighteenth or early nineteenth
century. The original main block of the house was constructed as a two-and-a-half-story,
side-gable structure of brick with a two-bay-wide fagade facing south. The fagade now
features a one-story portico that appears to have been added in the latter part of the
twentieth century. The single-bay brick addition, standing two stories in height with a
side-gabled roof, was built during the early twentieth century on the west elevation of the
main block. This addition gives the main block of the building a central-entry plan,
rather than the side-entry plan as originally constructed. It has a brick interior chimney at
the west end. Projecting from the east elevation is a large two-story, wood-frame
addition with a steeply pitched side-gabled roof. The addition, reflecting influences of
the Victorian-era, is finished with overhanging boxed cornices with an ogee-molded
profile, raked cornice in the gable ends, and returns. A tall corbelled interior brick
chimney projects from the roof at the east end. Based on the form, chimney, and cornice,
this addition appears to have been added in the late-nineteenth century. A two-story,
wood-frame addition with a shed roof projects from the south elevation of this addition,
obscuring any Victorian-era ornamentation and fenestration on the addition’s fagade.
This shed roof addition appears to date to the 1960s or 1970s. The foundation of the
Victorian-era addition has been parged, presumably to obscure the construction of the
shed-roofed addition. Both the Victorian-era addition and the shed-roofed addition are
clad in aluminum siding and have 1/1 metal-sash windows and 12/12 windows.
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Additionally, the fenestration on the north elevation of the Victorian-era addition has
been altered and obscured by the application of the aluminum siding. The second story
currently has a fixed picture window flanked by 1/1 metal-sash windows, and paired
metal casement windows. A secondary entry has been created from a former window
opening on the second story of the east side elevation of the Victorian-era addition. A
wood-frame, flat-roof bedroom suite addition, dating to the 1960s or 1970s, extends from
the north rear elevation. Set on a solid masonry foundation of concrete, the addition is
clad in aluminum siding.

While on site, the property owner produced a black-and-white photograph of the
dwelling, apparently taken around the turn of the twentieth century. The photograph
showed the dwelling prior to the construction of any of the additions described above.
The house had a one-story, side-gable wing on the east side elevation, described by the
current property owner as a “summer kitchen™ that was demolished when the current east
addition was constructed. The kitchen wing was once a freestanding three-bay-wide
structure connected to the main block of the building by a one-story addition. Also
present was a one-story porch that wrapped around the southwest corner and featured
decorative millwork characteristic of the late nineteenth century.

The 1975 survey form described the building as having 9/6 windows on the first story
and 6/6 windows on the second story. However, on-site investigation indicated that the
oldest portion of the building has 6/6 windows, and the early-twentieth-century west

addition has 12/8 windows. Later twentieth-century additions have 1/1 windows.

The interior of the dwelling, as noted in the 1975 survey, was extensively renovated in
the early twentieth century, presumably with the construction of the west addition. The
stair hall is located in the rear of the main block, rather than directly across from the main
entrance. Ms. Denton indicated that this stair may have been moved. The dining room
features a chair rail. The dining room and parlor are separated by an arched opening, and
the two rooms have matching fireplaces and chimneys on the east wall. These fireplaces,
and one in the west bedroom, have been boarded up. Each wood fireplace surround is
unique in form. Wood floors appear to be original, including the wood floor in the west
addition.

The second floor features four bedrooms arranged around the stair landing. The flooring
is not original. Ms. Denton indicated that the flooring had been removed for repair and
then was lost in a hurricane flood and had subsequently been replaced. The locations of
the three fireplaces on the second floor correspond to those of the first floor. A stair
leading from the landing to the attic is present on the north side of the dwelling. Access
to the apartment over the present kitchen is gained through the northeast bedroom.
According to Ms. Denton, the attic and basement each have three rooms.

Arranged in a line extending east from the dwelling is a series of associated outbuildings.
Closest to the house is a one-story, wood-frame pump house, and east of that is a one-
story wood-frame smokehouse. These two buildings are similar in appearance, with
front-gabled, asphalt-shingled roofs and flush, vertical-board cladding, and may date to
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. the late nineteenth or early twentieth century. East of the smokehouse is a one-story,
concrete-block garage dating to the mid-twentieth century. Mr. Handley indicated that
this garage replaced an earlier wood shed. East of the garage is one-story, wood-frame
corncrib, possibly dating to the late nineteenth century. East of the corncrib is a one-
story, prefabricated shed. East of the shed is a large wood-frame, side-gable building
described by Mr. Handley as a grainery. Exterior investigation of the grainery revealed
pegged rafters and metal strap-hinges on the south door consistent with a late-eighteenth-
or early-nineteenth-century date of construction. East of the grainery is a one-story
implement or tractor shed dating to the 1960s, according to Mr. Handley. East of the
implement shed and completing the row is a large wood-frame livestock barn that
appears to date to the early twentieth century.

Section 8: Significance

An on-site interview with the current property owner, Mr. James Handley, and his
daughter, Ms. Shirley Denton, was conducted by Anne E. Bruder, Architectural Historian
with SHA, and Carrie Albee, Architectural Historian with EHT Traceries, Inc., on
Thursday, May 25, 2006. In this interview, Mr. Handley outlined what he knew of the
history of the property, beginning with Margaret Spriggs, part Native American, who was
said to have had the primary dwelling constructed on the property in the eighteenth
century. Mr. Handley indicated that his family acquired the property in the late
nineteenth century. He stated that the property was given to his grandparents, James P.

. Handley and Sarah C. Handley, by Sarah C. Handley’s parents as a wedding gift.
Genealogical research confirmed that James P. Handley and Sarah Cornelia Seward were
both born circa 1860 and were married on January 18, 1882." The property has remained
in the family since that time. His father, Raymond, was born on the property in 1892,
and his mother was born in the early twentieth century (HeritageQuestOnline.com).” At
her death, Sarah C. Handley divided the property, then approximately 360 acres, roughly
evenly between six children, with each child inheriting approximately 60 acres. The
current 52 acres is the remaining portion of the 60 acres that Mr. James Handley’s father
received of the original 360 acres.

When asked about the origin of the name “Ware Neck Farm,” the name attributed to the
property on the 1975 survey form, Mr. Handley indicated that he had never heard the
name used to describe his property and that he did not know to what the name referred.

. l Genealogical Search, FamilySearch.org, 13 June 2006.
: * Information taken from the 1900 and 1930 US Census, HeritageQuestOnline.com, through Enoch Pratt
Free Library website, accessed 26 May 2006.
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HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAL PARKS SERVICE

[1NAME

C OMMON:

Ware Neck Farm

AND/OR HISTORIC:

{2, LOCATION

STREET AND NUMBER:

0ld Rt. 50, .5 miles east of Bucktown Rd,& Rt. 50, NE,.6 mi.
CITY OR TOWN:
Cambridge
STATE COUNTY:
Maryland Dorchester
[3. CLASSIFICATION S e
CATEGORY ACCESSIBLE
STATUS
(Check One) QUNERSP U TO THE PUBLIC
[] District 4 Building [] Public Public Acquisition: B Occupied Yes:
[ Site [] Structurs (O Private (] In Process [ Unoccupied O Restricted
[] Object (] Both [) Being Considered ] Preservation work (O Unrestricted
in progress BT Ne

PRESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

M Agricultural [0 Gevernment [0 Park [C] Trenspertation [[] Comments
[7] Commercial ] Industrial (¥ Privete Residence [C] Other (Specity)

[] Educationsl [ Military [] Religious

{7 Entertainment [] Museum [ Scientific

Fi. OWNER OF PROPERTY

BWNER'S NAME:

Raymond Handley

STREET AND NUMBER:

RFD 2

CITY OR TOWN:

Cambridge

STATE:

- ge Maryland
i!- LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION ;

R1612,

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Dorchester County Courthouse

STREET AND NUMBER:

Hi Street

CITY OR TOWN:

Cambridge

STATE

Maryland

21613

itle Reference

1

- 21e : L Pg. #);: 100/37
6, REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS e

TITLE OF SURVEY:

DATE OF SURVEY: [ Federal [ State [[] County

[ Local

DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS:

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:

Ps =709




7. DESCRIPTION N
(Check One)
CoNBiTIoN [C] Excellent B Good [O] Fair [C] Detericrated [C] Ruins [] ‘Unexposed
(Check One) (Check One)
Bd Altered [[] Unclrered ] Moved B4 Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT # 4D OQRIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house at Ware Neck is one of the significant Fed-
eral farmhouses along the Choptank River. It is a two bay
square building with a one bay, two story wing on the west
and a three bay, two story wing on the east.

Flemish bond was used on the south wall of the two
bay portion (the earliest part). Its windows have 9/6
on the first story and 6/6 on the second story. The entrance
on the west side has a simple porch of twentieth century
date. On the east gable the chimneys are connected by a
curtain wall above the roof giving the impression of great
mass. It is very similar to 204 High Street, Cambridge
as well as the Mitchell House, Kent County.

The west addition was built around the turn of the
century and is laid in Common bond. It consists of one
room on each of the two floors. Its windows have segmental
arches and 2/2 sash. The entire building has been painted
barn red.

The interior consists of a central stair hall with
two rooms on the east, in the original section, and one
room on the west. Two rooms and porch are included in the
east wing. Original trim exists in good state of preserva-
tion in the oldest part of the house.
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[ESiGRIFICANCE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
. [J Pre-Columbian [ 16th Century [ 18th Century [7J 20th Century
[] 15th Century [ 17th Century E 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATEIS) (If Applicable and Known)

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Abor iginal (0 Education [ Political Ll UiSsi:Riening
[[] Prehistoric [[] Engineering [] Religion/Phi. [ Other (Specity)
[ Historic [ Industry losephy

[O] Agriculture [ Invention [C] Science

[ Architecture [0 Lendscape [ Seulpture

] At Architecture [J Secial/Human-

[] Commerce [ Literature itarian

[[] Communications [ Military [ Theater

[[] Censervation [ Music [C] Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Ware Neck is significant architecturally for its
represents the late Federal period farmhouse with later
extensions. It is one of few houses of the period which
exist along the Choptank River east of Cambridge. Its
interior is also noteworthy.

Locally, it is considered of significance since the
tract was owned by some of the prominent early families
of Dorchester County. The Laskowski Papers, however, fail
to identify the proper sequence of owners ahd thus it
would be necessary to re-run the chain of title, in order

to establish the owner/builder.
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Laskowski Papers, 1955, p. 313

[10. GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES ! LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

BEFINING k RECTANGLE LocaTiNG THE enoeerry. |0 DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORMER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW o ' " ° ' - o ' . ° -
NE o [ - o . -
SE o . - o ] -
SW -] . L o L] -

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED FROPERTY:

[

Acreage Justification:

| District 14, Map 31, p. 67

11. FORM PREPARED BY g SR T

NAME AND TITLE:

Michael Bourne, Architectural Consultant

ORGANIZATION DATE

Maryland Historical Trust Nov., 1975

STREET AND NUMBER:

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Annapalis Maryland 21401

12.
—;JState Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National [] State [] Local [
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